HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 6, 2008
1:44 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:44:04 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Mary Nel son
Representative Bill Thomas Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative John Harris

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Nancy Dahl strom David Teal, Di rector,
Legi sl ative Fi nance Di vi si on; I an Fi sk, Staff,
Representative Bill Thomas; Eddy Jeans, Director, Education

Support  Servi ces, Department  of Education and Early
Devel opnent; Mary MDowell, Vice President, Pacific Seafood
Processors Association, Juneau; Tom Sunderland, Marketing
Director, QOcean Beauty Seafoods; Tim Cottongim Fish G oup
Manager, Tax Division, Departnment of Revenue; Dan Stickel
Econom st, Departnent of Revenue

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Debbi e Joslin, Eagle Forum Al aska
SUMVARY

HB 273 An Act relating to school funding, the base
student allocation, district cost factors, and the
adjustnments for intensive services and average
daily nmenbership calculations; and providing for
an effective date.

CS HB 273(FIN) was reported out of Conmttee with
a “do pass” recommendation and wth previously

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



publ i shed fiscal notes 1 & 2 by the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent and a new fi scal
note by the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent .

HB 321 An Act relating to the salnon product devel opnent
tax credit; providing for an effective date by
anmendi ng an effective date in sec. 7, ch. 57, SLA
2003, as anended by sec. 4, ch. 3, SLA 2006; and
providing for an effective date.

CS HB 321(FSH) was reported out of Conmittee with
a “do pass” recommendation and with a new fisca
note by the Departnent of Revenue.

HIR 2 Proposi ng an anmendnment to the Constitution of the
State of Alaska requiring an affirmative vote of
t he people before any form of ganbling for profit
may be authorized in Al aska.

HIR 2 was HEARD & HELD in Conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

1:44: 46 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted for the record that during the 2/6/08
Commttee on Conmittee’ s nmeeting, approval was made for the
tenporary appoint-repl acenent of Representative John Harris
to fill the House Finance Conmttee seat for Representative
Ri chard Foster until he recovers.

1: 46: 06 PM
#HB273
HOUSE BI LL NO 273

An Act relating to school funding, the base student
all ocation, district cost factors, and the adjustnents
for intensive services and average daily nenbership
cal cul ations; and providing for an effective date.

1: 46: 56 PM

Representati ve M ke Hawker, MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 1, 25-
LS0148\M 1, M schel, 1/25/08. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED for
di scussi on purposes.

Representative Hawker explained that the anmendnment adds
essenti al i nformation on fi nanci ng conponent s &
recomendati ons made by the Joint Legislative Education
Fundi ng Task Force. At the tinme the bill was drafted, the
information was not available to be included, addressing
recalibration of the pupil transportation costs. The
contracts were rewitten |ast sumrer and then renegoti at ed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Amrendnent 1 reflects those contracts, adding them to the
bill.

1:48: 01 PM

Co-Chair Meyer WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTTI ON, Amendnment 1 was ADOPTED

1: 48: 32 PM

DAVI D TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATI VE FI NANCE DI VI SI ON, provided
menbers a handout: “K-12 Foundati on Fornmul a Fundi ng- St ate of
Al aska FY2002 t hrough FY2011". (Copy on File).

He explained that the information resulted from requests to
identify the nunbers representing inflationary costs and
basi ¢ education funding. He highlighted the three various
scenari os:

. Method 1 - The amount of State spending for
educati on i ncreased since FY2002

. Method 2 - Increases to the Base Student Allocation
( BSA)

. Met hod 3 - Nunbers including retirenent costs

M. Teal explained there is “no clear way” to determ ne what
education funding actually is or how it has changed. The
easiest way to understand education funding is to observe
the total anmount appropriated for the foundation fornmula.
In FY02, the General Fund fornmula spending for the
foundation formula required $643 mllion dollars; FY09,
General Fund spending, not including debt reinbursenent,
will anpbunt to $1.214 billion dollars, which includes Task
Force recommendati ons not included in the BSA. The increase
fromFY02 to FY09 is anticipated to be $570 million dollars,
an increase of 89% during the seven years or a 9.5% annua
i ncreased spendi ng.

Representative Gara inquired the location of t hat
informati on on the handout. M. Teal said the cream col ored
area listed under Method 1. He noted an objection to the
conparison of total spending and the nunber of itens

affecting it includes the student count. On a per student
base, the average daily nenbership (ADM in FY02 was $5
t housand dollars higher than it is currently. On a per

student basis, funding was approximately $4.8 thousand
dollars; in FY02 & FY09, it has increased 95% to $9.4
t housand dollars. To adjust that nunber for inflation, the
spending would be boosted by inflation to match FY09
equi valent dollars, placing the increase up to 62% per
student fundi ng.

1: 51: 44 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Representative Gara pointed out that a | arge dollar increase
went into funding the retirenment shortfall. That account
was placed into the BSA for a few years. He asked if those
funds had been backed out, would there still be an adjusted
inflation anmount increase to education funding. M. Tea
poi nted out that information was indicated on the Method 2
chart. Method 2 identifies the increase to the BSA a nore
traditional method at looking at education funding.
Education funding tends to be a mx of State and |ocal
contributions, which can be affected by property values. He
commented, the BSA is the “cleanest way” to look at the
anount of noney going toward education in the classroom

M. Teal referenced handouts from previous neetings, which
he had nodified to reflect the Task Force recommendations
amounting to a $100 dollar increase from that proposed for
FY09- FY11, $200 doll ars.

M. Teal referenced Handout 2: “Alaska K-12 Funding, Base
Student Allocation with Adjustments”. (Copy on File). The
pencils on that chart do not show an increase quite as
rapidly, highlighting a 49% increase from FY02-FY09.
However, with the indicated changes, what is actually being
proposed is a 45% i ncrease.

The BSA does not reflect what the State has spent for K-12
because of inclusion of the early opportunity grants,
district ~cost factors, school inprovenent grants and
i ntensi ve needs.

1: 54: 02 PM

Representative Gara pointed out that the increases show the
upward flow to the BSA but do not indicate outside funding
such as the learning opportunity grants. Consequently, the
i ncreases were actually higher. He noted that a I|arge
portion of the BSA increases for a few years had gone into
the retirenment shortfall. He requested nore information
indicating the exclusion of noney to the retirenent
shortfall. He maintained that those dollars never go into
t he cl assroom

M. Teal advised that he had not tracked those nunbers
because retirenent was funded through the BSA, in order for
it to be tracked, there nmust be a conversion of the district
cost factors and the learning opportunity grants to a BSA
equi val ent. He wunderstood why Representative Gara would
want to do that for the retirement nunbers because,
basically, that too is a reduction to the BSA He noted
those nunbers were only tracked for FY09; he added,
retirement costs could be ignored from the FY02-FY09
conpari son. The State now has returned to the FY02

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



contribution rate and retirenment costs have been corrected
in the FY02-FY09 conpari son.

1: 56: 09 PM

Representati ve Gara under st ood t hat in FYO09, t he
contribution rate would be 12.5% he asked if that was the
rate in FYO2. M. Teal replied it was approximtely 12.5%

Representative Gara asked the change between FY02 and FY09
to per student funding. M. Teal referenced the chart with
the bars next to the pencils, Handout 2. The bars represent
the adjustnents to the BSA He described the process for
determning the difference between the graphed nunbers,
pointing out that in FYO5 & FY06, there was no funding
outside the fornmula. The BSA and the adjusted BSA was the
same in FYO7, including the district cost factors; in FY09 &
| ater, intensive needs and district cost factors (DCF) add a
substanti al amount of funding outside the BSA.

M. Teal continued, the Governor’s proposed increase of $200
dollars to the BSA, would cost $44.8 mllion dollars in
FYO09. Therefore, the $90 mllion dollars added for
i ntensi ve needs and DCF equal s a $402 dollar increase to the
BSA.

1: 59: 28 PM

M. Teal stated those nunbers include what the Departnent of
Education has indicated in the footnote with the $35 mllion
& the $70 million dollars outside the formula, converting it

to an equivalent BSA and then indicating the nunber. The
inflation adjustnent does not include retirenment costs, but
instead addresses dollars wthin the classroom The

increase is approximately 45% wth an average increase of
about 5.4% The BSA is anticipated to increase to 5.8% n

FY09, which wll be a 45% increase since FYO02. He
reiterated that the average annual rate of growh is
approximately 5.4% annually. Inflation has averaged 2.65%

each year, which nmeans that since FY02, K-12 funding has
grown twice the rate of inflation.

2:01: 08 PM

Representative Gara observed that those nunbers did not
include the cuts for funding. By excluding retirenent costs
and then including the outside allocated dollars within the
formula, the increase will be 5.4% per year. He pointed out
it is not calculated and in FYO3, the Legislature cut the
anmount of pupil transportation funding and the formula.
Additionally, the Legislature cut the pre-Kindergarten
program which had been included in the FY02 budget.
Schools were required to nake up the shortfalls from their
BSA dol |l ars; hence, classroom noney had to be placed into

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



t he above listed itens. Conmmunity school funding was cut in
FY03. Representative Gara summarized, there are a nunber of
funding sources K-12 education in FY02, which are not
indicated in the item zation graph, which narrows the change
bet ween FY02- FY09. M. Teal agreed.

2:02:18 PM

M. Teal admitted that many conplications occur when mnaking
a conparison. The attached chart represents only three
scenari os. M. Teal added that the itens referred to by

Representative Gara were relatively small and would not
change the bottom line, which is that funding is increasing
roughly twice the rate of inflation

2:03:12 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that references such as conmunity
schools are not considered education funding. He commented
that pupil transportation had increased. M. Teal advised
that pupil transportation had not been indicated, only the
foundation fornmula and that pupil transportation has
i ncreased. Sone consider that cost outside classroom noney.
There are numerous nethods that could be considered in
providing a valid conparison.

Co-Chair Chenault noted that in FY03, the Legislature
instituted a new pupil transportation funding arrangenent,
whi ch he understood provided an increase. Currently, those
dollars are no | onger adequate to address the concerns.

2: 04: 49 PM

Representative Hawker observed that the analysis had not
i ncluded any funding for the nmajor maintenance |ist, capital
construction or debt reinbursenent. M. Teal added, the
i ncluded costs are strictly operational.

Representative Hawker recalled that in FYO03, pupi
transportation was noved from a non-accountable to an
accountabl e system He acknowl edged the difficulty of
conposing an analysis and applauded the efforts done by
Legi sl ati ve Finance Division (LFD).

Representative Kelly noted appreciation for the work
provided by the LFD breaking down specific funding
i nformation. He warned that there had not been enough
information and research done for the choices being nade
He pointed out the 89% increased educational funding for K-
12 over the past seven years, enphasizing his concern with
the proposed budget. He stated the budget is unsustainable
and does not provide adequate value for increases to the
educational system He pointed out that the retirenent
costs to the systemw || take twenty-five years to pay off.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Representative Kelly urged that a nore conservative approach
be taken. He reiterated that the proposed costs are “out of
control”.

Co-Chair Meyer agreed wth concerns voiced by Representative
Kelly. He had hoped that the Task Force woul d have adequate
information for making reconmendations. Representative
Hawker noted that M. Jeans fromthe Departnent had provided
extensive information regarding the financial consequences
of the decisions being nade.

Co-Chair Meyer advised that the |egislative appropriations
have nore than doubled in keeping up with inflation.

Representative Gara renenbered opposing the change to pupil
transportation nmade in FYO3. Until FYO3, school districts
received full conpensation for transportation costs.
Beginning in FY03, the conmunities were provided increased
suppl enental funding for fuel costs. In nost schoo
districts, the increase has been steep. The Legislature
determined a forrmula providing a percentage that did not
increase with the actual costs. Many districts have had to
take noney from their classroom funds to pay for the
i ncreased fuel costs, which has been a great concern since
FYO03. He acknow edged, the education debate has been
frustrating. Education policy should be determning the
bal ance between urban and rural areas. In many districts,
class sizes are too big. He recomended that discussion
occur on what the l|legislature can do to help reduce class
si ze. I nstead, discussion only conpares funding from one
year to the next. Representative Gara worried about basic
educati on consi derati ons.

2:12: 33 PM

M. Teal addressed Method 3, the nodel excluding retirenent
costs. Method 3 provides an analytic view of only the
dollars in the classroom State retirenent contributions on
behal f of school districts in FYO9 will be $216 mllion
dol | ars. If that noney was distributed to the districts,
the BSA would experience a 68% increase in K-12 funding
since FY02, growing at 7.7% annually, tripling the rate of
i nflation. Retirement funding is costing the State nore
noney, however, the teachers are not being paid nore. There
iS no nore available to the districts or the classroons
because the funds are paid directly to the Departnent of
Education. Method 3 excludes retirement costs. Retirenent
costs are now $216 nmillion dollars per year, which the State
pays instead of increasing the BSA. If those dollars were
paid to the districts, it would be the equival ent of having
a BSA of $6.8 thousand dollars. He concluded that it grows
triple the rate of inflation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Representative Gara discussed the anount of noney currently
pl aced into the education system Costs to the schools are
increasing faster than inflation. He questioned how nuch
health insurance & fuel costs had superseded inflation.
Those costs are eating away the district’s ability to
provide curriculum M. Teal agreed, but did not have the
nunbers. The inflation indicator being used is the Consuner
Price Index (CPl), which has no relationship to the costs of
runni ng schools but is the standard reconmendati on.

2:16: 09 PM

Representative Kelly asked if K-12 education system used a
simlar index as that used by the University. M. Teal said
no. Representative Kelly opined that the spreadsheet
att achnment provides a “great voucher pr oposal ” for
education. He reiterated concerns with the proposed budget.

2:17: 30 PM

EDDY JEANS, DI RECTOR, EDUCATI ON SUPPORT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, explained that he had
just received the LFD anal ysis, which, he assuned origi nated
fromhis testinony during the pervious hearing, identifying
the Governor’s request to nove $100 dollars per student per
year for each of the next three years.

M. Jeans hoped he had not left the Conmttee with the
i npression that education funding had not substantially
i ncreased since FY02. That was not his intent. M. Jeans
warned it is inappropriate, for the Legislature to consider
formula adjustnents in an inflation calculation. The Task
Force made reconmendat i ons because t hey per cei ved
deficiencies in the existing fornmula, to be adjusted. M .
Jeans stated there should not be an adjustnent, weighing in

a cost of Iliving factor. He understood that Anchorage’s
contract for their teachers would increase 4% 3% 3% over the
next three years. The Governor’s proposes a $200 doll ar
increase, which wuld be slightly below 4% The

Adm nistration attenpts to achieve sustainability and
predictability for the school districts & nmunicipalities so
that they can plan ahead for the next four years. He
comented that the $200 dollar increase will provide that
predictability.

2:20: 09 PM

Representative Gara mai ntained that there nust be a fornula,
protecting both urban and rural school districts. He noted
his support for the proposal by the Adm nistration, increase
as recommended in the bill. He observed the increase for
special needs funding is a fraction of the real costs. He
asked how much the Anchorage School District receives for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



their special needs student versus the real costs for that
st udent .

M. Jeans replied that currently, Anchorage is spending $80
t housand dollars for a special needs child; they are
actually funded $26 thousand dollars through the foundation
pr ogram He hoped that could be a fornmula correction
recommended by the Task Force and to include it as an offset
toinflation in the analysis would be inappropriate.

Representative Gara warned that establishing a fornmula that
| eaves the mjority of students in the State behind
inflation, results in bigger class sizes & less curricul um
He hoped that the Commttee could discuss ways to address
t hose concerns.

Representative Kelly disagreed with comments that Al askan's
only ook at the cost of education. He believed that the
public looks at the total costs, reiterating that the
proposed costs are not sustai nable.

2:23: 32 PM

Co-Chair Meyer interjected that on the State level, only the
total costs should be addressed. It is up to the loca
school districts to determne which prograns are offered in
their location. The function of the Legislature is only to
provi de the necessary funding.

Representative Gara advised he intends to offer an amendnent
on the House floor. He wurged reconsideration of the
proposed increase contained in the bill. He agreed with the
Adm nistration that $200 dollars per year does neke nore
sense. Initially, the however, the Task Force nenbers
di sagreed about the exact anount and decided that the
Legi sl ature should determne it. He requested further
di scussion on the increased |levels of funding are and what
it means in ternms of class size and curriculum offered and
it affects each student.

2:26: 01 PM

Representative Crawford noted frustration maintaining the
status quo for Alaska s students. He wurged a better
investnment in kids so that they can succeed in the
conpetitive world. He supported the nunber proposed by the
Adm ni stration

Representative Joule observed that the Education Funding
Task Force had a narrowy defined mssion and that the
tinmeline was short for addressing such a |large focus. He
shared frustration as voiced by other nenbers.

2:29:49 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Co- Chair Chenault appreciated the work that the Task Force
acconplished with the requested direction provided them
They did address sone of the needs of Al askan students. He
did not agree that the proposed funding keeps districts at a
status quo but thought, instead, it noves them forward. He
indicated the short funding over the past ten years, and
realized that Anchorage intensive needs are a huge issue

He nentioned the special needs in his own district and
poi nted out that statewi de, there are over 800 children in
t hat category. Smal | er classroons require nore noney in
education and/or hiring nore teachers. He agreed the topic
shoul d be discussed at greater length at a future tine.

Co- Chair Chenault acknow edged the system is not perfect.
He indicated concern with the voucher criteria. He thought
that the Task Force did an excellent job in formng
| egi slation, maintaining that HB 273 i nproves the outl ook of
education in the State.

2:34: 05 PM

Co-Chair Meyer reiterated his appreciation for the work by
the Task Force. He pointed out the three fiscal notes, with
a new one by the Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent .

Representative the statistics on the nunber of kids actually
graduating from high school & how Alaska ranks with the
ot her states.

2:35: 22 PM

Representative Hawker acknow edged there had been a
di vergence of opinions brought forward in drafting HB 273.
He acknow edged shared concerns voiced by Representative
Kel ly.

Representati ve Hawker MOVED to REPORT CS HB 273 (FIN) out of
Commttee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. Representative Kelly OBIJECTED

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Crawf or d, Gar a, Hawker , Joul e, Nel son
Stoltze, Thomas, Chenault, Meyer
OPPQOSED: Kel l'y

Representati ve Foster was not present for the vote.

The MOTI ON FAI LED (9-1).

CS HB 273(FIN) was reported out of Commttee with a “do
pass” recomendation and wth tw previously published

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



fiscal notes by the Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent and one new fiscal note by the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent .

AT EASE: 2:38:12 PM
RECONVENE: 2:44: 03 PM
#HB321

HOUSE BI LL NO. 321

An Act relating to the salnon product devel opnent tax
credit; providing for an effective date by anending an
effective date in sec. 7, ch. 57, SLA 2003, as anended
by sec. 4, ch. 3, SLA 2006; and providing for an
effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE BILL THOVAS, SPONSOR, noted that the Sal non
Product Devel opnent Tax Credit encourages and accelerates
the devel opnment and production of value added salnon
products in Al aska by providing an econonmi c incentive to the
investnments in new technol ogy and equi pnent. He expl ai ned
that HB 321 provides a recommended sunset extension for an
additional 3 years. The original expiration date was
Decenber 31, 2008. The tax credit applies to the fisheries
busi ness tax paid by the processors. It allows processers
to claim up to 50% of the costs. The dollars nust be
predom nately used for sal non and val ue-added product. The
bill allows for innovative marketing of sal non products.

Representative Thomas pointed out that during the Salnon
Task Force neeting, the market condition and prices were

low, conpeting with farnmed sal non. As a result of sone
other efforts and the drafting of the bill that trend is
changi ng. He indicated strong support for the program

which is of value for the conmmunities and the statew de
econony. He urged passage of the tax extension.

| AN FI SK, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE BILL THOVAS, clarified the
changes nmade in the commttee substitute and put forward by
the Fisheries Commttee. He referenced Page 2, Lines 11-12,
| anguage relating to conveyers:

“(i1i) Conveyors wused specifically in the act of
produci ng a val ue- added sal non product;”

A conveyer is equipnent, which often is integral to val ue-
added sal non processing. The | anguage should have been
included as intent, passing from the Task Force. Language
on Page 2, Lines 14-15, was requested by the Departnent of
Revenue, to prevent any m sunderstanding regarding the use
of the equi pnment:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



“(1) vehi cl es, forklifts, conveyors not used
specifically in the act of producing a value-added
sal non product,”

M. Fish comented that for small processors, conveyors can
be inportant equipnent and should be included in the
program

He referenced | anguage on Page 2, Section 3, Line 24, taken
fromthe original bill:

“*Sec. 3. AS 43.75.035 is anmended by adding a new
subsection to read:”

The language indicates a procedure for prelimnary
determnation for eligibility, suggesting it would be a
| ogi cal addition to the program

Representati ve Hawker asked if the Representative Thomas was
in agreenment with the amendnents nmade during the conmttee
process. Representative Thomas replied yes.

MARY MCDOWELL, VICE PRESIDENT, PACIFIC SEAFOOD PROCESSORS
ASSCCI ATION (PSPA), JUNEAU, stated that three of PSPA s
menber conpani es are sal non processors — Peter Pan Seaf oods,
Al aska GCeneral Seafoods and North Pacific Seafoods. All
three conpanies have made good use of the sal non product
devel opment tax credit, working with the program goals
i ncludi ng devel opnent & expansion of new and val ue-added
salmon products while Kkeeping Alaska fishery rmarket
conpetitive in the world market.

Ms. McDowell noted letters of support in the Commttee file
from the processors, outlining the benefit of the credit.
She pointed out that the Legislature had tightly constructed
the program so that it could achieve the goals set forth

That has proven successful.

Ms. MDowell added there is nore to do to continue the
nonmentum of the program to insure that the product stays
conpetitive. Currently, skyrocketing energy costs are
eating up profits. Processors for the nost part operate in
rural communities where energy costs are the highest; the
profit margins could otherwi se be invested in equipnent.
The tax credit encourages processors to nove ahead. The
val ue- added product keeps Alaska’'s fish conpetitive in the
world rmarket, which in turn Dbenefits fishernen and
comunities. Ms. MDowell anticipated that the investnent
will pay for itself.

Representative Gara asked how the tax is calculated and the
antici pated annual revenue generated. He al so asked the
anount being credited. Co-Chair Meyer requested the
guestion be held until public testinony was cl osed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



TOM SUNDERLAND, MARKETI NG DI RECTOR, OCEAN BEAUTY SEAFQOODS,

testified in support of HB 321. He pointed out that Ccean
Beauty is an Al askan owned corporation, 50% owned by the
Bristol Bay Econom c Devel opnent Corporation (BBEDC) and 50%
owned by fishernen. The corporation operates only as a
shor e- based operati on.

M. Sunderland continued, Ocean Beauty provides direct
incentive for value-added fish and how to inprove the

quality of that product. He provided background on the
original bill. Conpanies only have a certain ability to
expand their plans. Ocean Beauty has taken advantage of the
tax credit. Utimately, the plan is to inprove the val ue-

added equi pnrent. He acknow edged that many inprovenents are
necessary requiring the use of tax credits. He enphasi zed
that long-term economcs for passage of the bill remain
strong, while outlined specific costs. He believed that the
credits have the benefit of rising the value of the fishery
and that raising taxes at the sane tinme could create better
& higher paying jobs for the State of Al aska.

Representative Gara questioned if Ocean Beauty nakes
i nvestments because they know they can receive a tax credit.
M. Sunderland said they have. Representative Gara asked to
receive an estimate of projects that would not have been
done if the conmpany had not received the tax credit. M .
Sunder| and expected it would have been half of what was
acconpl i shed.

Vice-Chair Stoltze stated that previously, he had not
supported the bill. He asked if a short season woul d i npact
the tax credit. M. Sunderland asserted that a short season
i npacts everything; it is difficult to anortize costs when
the season is short.

Representative Gara reiterated his request to get the
nunbers of estimated projects pending receipt of the credit.
M. Sunderland said he did not know but inmagined that the
rate of growth was 50% hi gher.

3:06: 07 PM

Representative Kelly referenced the flow chart «credit
i ndi cator and asked about those nunbers. [ Attachnent not
Avai | abl e] . M. Sunderland pointed out that processors

using credit, don’t always get their projects approved. He
understood that there have been di sputes over syntax of the
| anguage, which has resulted in the inclusion of
nodi fications for a binding predeterm nation.

PUBLI C TESTI MONY CLOSED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Representative Gara requested a review by the Departnent of
Revenue for how the credit system works and the amount it
generates for the State.

TIM COTTONG M FI SH GROUP MANAGER, TAX DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT
OF REVENUE, provided nenbers a chart, “Salnon Product
Devel opnent Tax Credits, Cal endar years 2003-2006". (Copy
on File). The handout indicates the anmount of credits
allowed. The tax is inposed on anyone that processes raw
resources in the State for purposes of resale. The
mentioned tax credit is specifically for salnon processed in
the State and can only be clained for 50% of the tax on the
sal non processed in Al aska. The spreadsheet indicates that
approximately $2.8 mllion dollars in credits have been
cl ai med each year.

Representative Gara asked if the $2.8 mllion dollars in
FYO6, was a reduction in the tax or dollars that would
qualify for the 50% tax credit. M. Cottongimreplied it
had been generated and woul d qualify.

Representative Gara referenced the $1.4 nmillion dollars
taken off the total tax, l|eaving the nunber for the Sal non
Processi ng Tax.

3:13: 00 PM

DAN STI CKEL, ECONOM ST, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, explained
that the total investnent expenditures that qualified for
the tax in FY0O6 was $5.8 nillion dollars. That anount
resulted in $9 million dollars in credits clained. A fina
audit has not occurred; however, it is anticipated that the
total credits allowed will be around $2 nmillion dollars.

Representative Gara asked the approximate anount of the
Sal non Processi ng Tax. M. Stickel replied that for FYO06,
there was approximately $12.7 nmillion dollars fisheries tax
recei ved

3:14: 31 PM

Representative Kelly inquired if the credit was still
needed.

Representative Thomas understood that in order to continue
forward with product devel opnent, the legislation needs to
pass. He advised, when equipnment is purchased, it becones
taxed by | ocal borough assenblies. The processors continue
to pay property tax on the equi pnent.

Co- Chair Meyer noted the new fiscal note.
Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED to REPORT CS HB 321 (FSH) out of
Commttee wth individual recomendations and wth the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

3:17:10 PM

CS HB 321(FSH) was reported out of Commttee with a “do
pass” recomendation and with a new fiscal note by the
Depart ment of Revenue.

3:17:52 PM
#HIR2
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 2

Proposi ng an anendnent to the Constitution of the State
of Alaska requiring an affirmative vote of the people
before any form of ganbling for profit my be
aut hori zed in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE NANCY DAHLSTROM SPONSOR, advised that sone
Al askans nmay consider ganbling to be a harm ess pastineg;
however, those costs are underestimated in relationship to
human suffering. HIR 2 would anmend the Al aska Constitution
to require an affirmative vote of the people before any form
of ganbling for profit can be authorized in Al aska.

Studi es have shown that about 2.5 mllion Americans are
pat hol ogi cal ganblers and another 3 mllion are problem

ganbl ers. The conpul sive ganblers have high rates of
sui ci de, depression, mania, alcohol and drug abuse and
arrest rates. According to the Anmerican |nsurance

Institute, ganbling is the main cause of white collar crine
and is the third |eading cause of individual bankruptcy in
Aneri ca. Though the human suffering caused by conpul sive
ganbling may be borne by a mnority of the population, the
overall econom c and social costs are shared by all. She
urged support for HIR 2.

3:21:11 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked the definition of ganbling for
profit & how that would affect ganbling for non-profit. He
guestioned if a secondary party could be involved, which he
t hought mght restrict charitable gam ng. Representati ve
Dahl strom responded that the resolution does not change
anything already in place.

Vice-Chair Stoltze stated that the |anguage appeared
anbi guous, regarding inclusion of an approval vote by
muni ci palities.

REPRESENTATI VE  HARRY  CRAWFORD, SPONSCR, advi sed that

| anguage had been included during the last commttee of
referral, for the |local option as well.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Vice-Chair Stoltze understood the option, but wanted further
information regarding the intent. Representative Crawford
t hought that both were needed. Vice-Chair Stoltze did not
think both were intended; he worried that about the proposed
| anguage was unclear and could beconme a constitutional
amendnent .

Representative Crawford read the referencing |anguage: “A
majority vote of the qualified voters of the State”; the
| anguage followi ng that: “Approved by the nunicipality”. He
believed that |anguage could addresses concerns voiced by
Representative Stoltze.

Vice-Chair Stoltze reiterated his question. He asked if it
was intended for a nunicipal vote or if it neant that a
| ocal assenbly could pass an ordinance or the mayor, an
edict. He recommended anot her threshold be used.

3:24:19 PM

Representative Dahlstrom explained that in version\M as
changed in the House Judiciary conmttee, Line 10, uses the
word “any”. She added that the sponsors had worked wth
Jerry Luckhaupt at Legislative Legal to draft the |anguage.

Co-Chair Chenault advised that nenbers have the version\K
before them Representative Dahlstrom explained the
differences in which Line 10, “any” was deleted and the
reason for that deletion, is the insertion of the |anguage:

“The addition of the word *any’ on Line 10, may lead to
uni nt ended consequences. If the Legislature passed a
law allowing for-profit ganbling, in any nunicipality
with a popul ation of one thousand or nore, the decision
is ratified by the voters, then it may be legal in
ot her nmunicipalities”.

“Any” was deleted and “each” was inserted. She enphasi zed
that the intent is that no ganbling expansion statew de. |If
a municipality chooses to vote on it, each individual
muni ci pality would vote, if they have a voting population
over 1, 000.

3:27:18 PM

Representative Crawford added that the |egislation requires
a mjority vote of the entire State. He inquired if
Representative Stoltze would like to see a mmpjority vote
also within each municipality. Vice-Chair Stoltze denmanded
to know what was neant by the |anguage as witten.
Representative Crawford thought he had clarified what he
nmeant . Vice-Chair Stoltze replied what is neant and what
has been said are not in sync, reiterating the anbiguity.
He asked if it was intended that a voter approva

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



requi renment be placed at the |ocal |evel. Representative

Crawford replied that was the intent. Representative
Dahl strom agreed. Vice-Chair Stoltze asked what “yes”
nmeant .

Co-Chair Chenault interjected that the intent of the
constitutional anmendnment is to have a majority vote of the
citizens of the State to introduce gam ng anywhere in the
State. Also, it is intended that nunicipalities exceeding
on thousand voting residents would have to have a majority
vote within their nunicipality in order to have it, even
though the citizens of the State said it was allowable.
Representative Dahl strom affirned.

3:29:46 PM

Representative Hawker noted consequences associated under
the federal Indian Gam ng Act, mandating unrestricted gam ng
anywhere and already allows gam ng statew de. He asked the
consequences of opening up wunrestricted Indian gam ng.
Representative Crawford replied that the |legislation does
not intend to open up gam ng anywhere in the State. | f
qualified voters in the State say it is okay to open it up
for profit gamng, could open up an allowance for |Indian
gam ng

Representati ve Hawker i nquired about t he secondary
qualification and approval by the nunicipality. He was
curious if there was a conflict between the Indian Gam ng
Act and State authority. Representative Crawford expl ai ned
that the previous Conmittee realized that the | anguage coul d
be vetoed at the local |evel. He thought it would not
precl ude I ndi an gam ng.

3:33: 05 PM

Co-Chair Chenault clarified for the record that the bill did
not contain a population requirenment as currently witten.

Representative Nelson noticed that whenever Committee
menbers address gamng, Indian gamng is brought up and
beconmes the “bogie man”. She questioned that heightened
| evel of concern. Representati ve Dahl strom expl ai ned that
her concern was wth ganbling or gamng of any sort,
anyplace in Alaska. The legislation has nothing to do with
race or culture. Anything that already exists, wll
continue to be allowed. She worried about the effect for
future generations and the costs to society.

Representative Nel son asked Representative Hawker about his
concern. Representative Hawker apol ogi zed if he was seen to
have racist views. He was concerned about the possibility
of establishing a conflict between federal statute and State
Constitutional authority. He thought it could result in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



some formof litigation to further clarify the relationship
between the State and the federal governnent.

Representative Crawford noted urgency for the initiative to
be on the ballot, August 20008. He pointed out that the
initiative would establish a five person gam ng conm ssion.
He referenced Page 3, Section 05.18.030, Nunmber 3, which
clarifies that authorization of gamng activities pursuant
to Section 05.18.100. The comm ssion could authorize any
future gamng activities. He stated he opposes ganbling
activity on noral and economi c grounds and that Al aska can
not absorb for profit gam ng, which shrinks the econony and
over the long-term the social costs keep grow ng.

3:38:42 PM

Representative Gara asked if it was intended that the
muni ci palities vote. Representative Crawford explained, it
is intended for any municipality to hold a public vote and
deci de upon the issue for their area. Representative Gara
agreed with the coments expressed by Vice-Chair Stoltze,
referencing |anguage on Page 1, Line 9, “ratified by a
majority vote of the qualified voters of the State”. He
recommended the | anguage “ratified by a mgjority vote of the
qualified voters in the muni ci pality”, be  added,
guaranteeing that it is a public vote.

Representative Gara added that requiring |ocal vote of one
t housand or nore is not fair to the smaller nunicipalities.
He recommended retaining current |anguage including a
uniformrule for all rnunicipalities.

3:40: 56 PM

Represent ati ve Dahl strom acknow edged that | anguage woul d be
accept abl e.

Vice-Chair Stoltze wunderstood that the intent was to
substitute the legislative role with the public role on a
State & local level. Representative Dahlstrom said yes.

Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired that once the initiative was on
the ballot, by asking voters approval, could the requirenent
be net. Representative Crawford responded that the
initiative sets up a gam ng conm ssion. The legislation is
about regulating what currently exists. Vice-Chair Stoltze
understood it was about expanded ganbling and did not want
to see the | anguage cl ouded.

AT EASE: 3:44: 06 PM
RECONVENE: 3:44: 28 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Representative Crawford explained that the people could pass
the initiative and the constitutional anmendnment, |egalizing
the ability for the Conm ssion to set up ganbling by passing

the initiative and the Constitutional anendnent. He stated
that the amendnent would supersede the initiative. The
initiative does not legalize ganbling; it Ilegalizes the

ability for the comm ssion to set up ganbling and woul d not
contradict the will of the people.

3:45:31 PM

Represent ati ve Dahl strom advi sed that follow ng conversation
with Legislative Legal, M. Luckhaupt clarified that the
Constitution does supersede statute.

Represent ati ve Hawker questioned if “nunicipality” should be

used rather than “political subdivision”. Representative
Gara advised that a statutory definition of nunicipality
coul d becone i nposed. He was not sure but thought that
muni ci pality would be covered by statute, yet, did not know
i f muni ci pality was defined anywhere else in the
Consti tution. Representati ve Dahl st rom asked i f
muni cipality could include a political subdi vi si on.

Representative Gara did not know.

3:47: 36 PM

Representative Gara asked about noving a conceptual
anmendnent. Co-Chair Chenault requested that a fully drafted
anmendnent be prepared for the next Commttee neeting.

Representative Dahlstrom offered to work wth Co-Chair
Meyer’s staff to address the intent.

Representative Gara asked to clarify comments nade by Vice-
Chair Stoltze, wunderstanding that he did not intend to
renove the right to vote. He advised that only the
popul ace, through their own vote, can renove that.

3:50: 07 PM

DEBBI E JOSLIN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EAGLE FORUM
ALASKA, testified in support of HIR 2. She concurred with
comments nade by Representative Dahlstrom and the ills that
occur with ganbling. She recomrended that | anguage be added
to Line 10 “approved that even when there is a statew de
vote, nmunicipalities should be allowed to vote independent
of that vote.

3:53:18 PM

PUBLI C TESTI MONY CLOSED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



Co-Chair Chenault inquired if a mpjority vote would be

required at the municipal |evel. Representative Crawford
commented that initially, a 60% majority vote was required,
however, during the process, |anguage was changed to a

sinple majority. He clarified that he preferred the 60%

HIR 2 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.
#
3:54: 45 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:54 P. M

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 02/06/08 1:44 P. M



